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          1  HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The Health and

          3  Hospitals Corporation. And please, any business

          4  discussions, please take outside. I see that the

          5  President of the Health and Hospitals Corporation is

          6  before us. I want to first thank you for having

          7  patience. As you know, I always love the way they

          8  schedule these hearings, and then they expect to

          9  deal with a budget of $35 billion and yet within an

         10  hour we are supposed to get it all said and done.

         11  And I am sorry, I don't have the time, so I

         12  apologize for the delay, and I know that it has

         13  perhaps changed your scheduling. I don't know about

         14  anybody else, I just cannot in good conscience --

         15  and then all year we complain about why things are

         16  not done. So, I want to personally apologize for the

         17  delay and I thank you for your patience.

         18                 Having said that, President Marcos,

         19  would you identify yourself for the record and those

         20  around you, and then would you proceed with your

         21  testimony.

         22                 DR. MARCOS: Thank you. Good

         23  afternoon. Let me start by introducing the people

         24  who are accompanying me today.

         25                 To my right, Mr. Frank Cirillo, he is
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          2  the Senior Vice President for Operations. Mr. Rick

          3  Langfelder is the Chief Financial Officer of the

          4  Corporation. Laray Brown, Vice President for

          5  Corporate Planning, and Dr. Van Dunne, Vice

          6  President for Medical and Professional Affairs.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Go ahead, Mr.

          8  President. You can start when you want to.

          9                 DR. MARCOS: My name is Luis Marcos, I

         10  am the President of the Health and Hospitals

         11  Corporation, and today I am here to discuss the

         12  Corporation Expense Budget for Fiscal Year 2000.

         13                 The Corporation Fiscal Year 2000

         14  Operational Budget is predicted to be $3.423

         15  billion. The budget is funded as follows:

         16                 - $1.4 billion from Medicaid

         17  fee-for-service.

         18                 -$189 million from Medicaid Managed

         19  Care.

         20                 - $609 million, from bad debt and

         21  charity care pools.

         22                 -$536 million from Medicare.

         23                 - $297 million from commercial

         24  payers.

         25                 - $103 million from the Community
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          2  Health Partnership.

          3                 -$179 million for various City

          4  contracts primarily, Correctional Health Services,

          5  Family Health Services and Mental Health programs.

          6                 -$57 million from the Purchase of

          7  Service Agreement with the City to pay for uniformed

          8  services, prisoners and the County Morgue.

          9                 HHC's financial plan projects a

         10  deficit on an accrued basis and a modest cast

         11  surplus for FY 1999 and Fiscal Year 2000.

         12                 We also project cash budget gaps of

         13  $59 million, $335 million, and $330 million for

         14  Fiscal Years 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

         15                 Projected declines in inpatient

         16  utilization and changes in HHC's payer mix

         17  translates into a net revenue decline of $227

         18  million from FY 2000 to FY 2003. Key revenue

         19  assumptions in these projections include the

         20  following:

         21                 - $795 million reduction in Medicaid

         22  fee-for-service.

         23                 - $595 million increase in Medicaid

         24  Managed Care.

         25                 - $28 million reduction in Medicare.
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          2                 - $22 million increase in other

          3  payers.

          4                 The decrease in Medicaid revenues is

          5  related primarily to a managed care shift, which

          6  assumes a July 1999 start-up of mandatory Medicaid

          7  Managed care and that 20 percent of HHC's current

          8  fee-for-service patients will switch to managed care

          9  in FY 2000.

         10                 Let me, if it is all right with you,

         11  Mr. Chairman, I will move on to page six of my

         12  testimony to address the revenue decline and to

         13  maintain fiscal solvency in FY 2000 and the years

         14  ahead, the Corporation will continue to work in the

         15  following areas:

         16                 - Attrition, expenditure reductions

         17  and management initiatives.

         18                 - Consolidation and reconfiguration

         19  of health care services.

         20                 - moderate savings in affiliation

         21  contract expenditures through performance-based

         22  model standards.

         23                 - Maximization of bad debt and

         24  charity pools and appeals and settlements.

         25                 - Implementation of an Early
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          2  Retirement Incentive Program and Severance Programs.

          3                 It is important to note that the

          4  Corporation is currently projecting a deficit on an

          5  accrued accounting basis. In order to balance on an

          6  accrued basis, HHC must generate modest cash

          7  surpluses to fund depreciation.

          8                 There are difficult challenges that

          9  lie ahead. The Corporation's success over the past

         10  three years in achieving balanced operations and the

         11  continued commitment to operate with fiscal

         12  discipline provide the requisite framework for the

         13  Corporation to remain competitive in the current

         14  health care environment.

         15                 In an effort to retain those patients

         16  who have traditionally sought care within the public

         17  hospital system, but who now have a broader choice

         18  of providers, HHC has taken steps to sustain market

         19  share through growth in MetroPlus, HHC's HMO, as

         20  well as other HMOs.

         21                 We have extensive advertising and

         22  subscriber outreach initiatives aimed at increasing

         23  plan enrollment and retention are being undertaken.

         24  MetroPlus enrollment, for example, has grown from

         25  20,000 members in 1994 to over 54,000 members as of
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          2  March of 1999. In addition, the Corporation will

          3  apply for participation in managed care plans

          4  sponsored by the New York State Department of Health

          5  for special needs, such as patients with behavioral

          6  health problems and AIDS.

          7                 The uninsured. The Corporation has

          8  undertaken steps to address the problem of the

          9  uninsured, which include improved Medicaid

         10  application enrollment and processing and an

         11  increased eligibility determination.

         12                 We have also implemented a project

         13  with GHI to offer coverage to the working uninsured.

         14  In addition, the State Legislature has authorized an

         15  expansion of the State's Child Health Plus program

         16  to provide broader coverage for children.

         17                 In terms of utilization trends,

         18  consistent with the goals of managed care, we

         19  continue to focus on moving from inpatient-based

         20  care to more ambulatory care-focused services

         21  delivery. Compared to Fiscal '98 and Fiscal '99, the

         22  average length of stay decreased from 5.8 days to

         23  5.6, or a decrease of three percent. The average

         24  daily census has declined from FY '98 to Fiscal '99

         25  by 5.5 percent.
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          2                 All of our facilities have shown a

          3  decline, except for Elmhurst Hospital that has shown

          4  an increase by 2.4 percent.

          5                 In conclusion, as we move into the

          6  new fiscal year into the new millennium, innovation

          7  and not the status quo will be the benchmark of our

          8  success. The Corporation is building a stronger and

          9  more efficient integrated health care delivery

         10  system that will enhance the quality of care

         11  provided to our patients and our ability to compete

         12  with any hospital system in the City.

         13                 Thank you for allowing me to address

         14  you this afternoon. And I will now answer any

         15  questions that you may have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         17  President.

         18                 Let me perhaps go into the headcount.

         19  Let me just share with you what was reported to me

         20  this morning as I was being briefed and maybe you

         21  could either correct me or enlighten me or what have

         22  you.

         23                 If you recall, about two months ago

         24  during the preliminary budget hearing, you testified

         25  that HHC was planning to reduce its work force by
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          2  500 full-time positions. HHC's monthly indicator

          3  report for the March of 1999 shows a decrease of 477

          4  positions. Yet, two weeks ago Council staff was told

          5  by the Administration that almost twice that number,

          6  800 positions, have been attributed this year.

          7                 According to the Administration,

          8  because HHC has exceeded the target, the Corporation

          9  is planning to keep headcount flat in Fiscal Year

         10  2000 and resume headcount reduction in Fiscal Year

         11  2001.

         12                 Now, let me just share with you what

         13  I remembered you said to us at the hearing we held,

         14  I think it was some time around March. You said that

         15  at that moment the number was 500, but you were at

         16  400 plus, and then that each fiscal year, for the

         17  next three fiscal years starting in the Year 2000,

         18  it will be 1,000 each fiscal year.

         19                 Now, please tell me what is the

         20  number? Is it 800 so far in Fiscal Year '99 and is

         21  that going to go up? Because fiscal year has not

         22  ended?

         23                 Are we not going to do anything in

         24  the Year 2000, which you said will begin the 1,000

         25  and then according to what we are being told, that
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          2  implementation of the 1,000 will begin in the Year

          3  2001, what is the real scenario on that issue?

          4                 DR. MARCOS: Unfortunately, Mr.

          5  Chairman, it is very hard for us to give you very

          6  specific numbers because the entire health care

          7  system is changing. But let me try to be as specific

          8  as I can.

          9                 Let me ask Mr. Langfelder to explain

         10  some of the numbers.

         11                 MR. LANGFELDER: Okay. The 500 --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: First of all, let

         13  me just recite to you so you understand what I am

         14  looking for.

         15                 The number you gave us at the last

         16  hearing was 477 already. Your number was 500.

         17                 The number that our staff, while I

         18  was away, was told to prepare for this hearing,

         19  tells us that you were at 800. Are those numbers

         20  correct?

         21                 MR. LANGFELDER: The 500 number is

         22  correct, the 477 number is correct. I don't know the

         23  800 number.

         24                 And as far as the other pieces go,

         25  our goal this year is 500, we are at 477.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Here is my

          3  dilemma: I am told by the Office of Management and

          4  Budget, OMB, they gave us that 800; is that 800 the

          5  real number?

          6                 MR. LANGFELDER: No. It's 500.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The real number

          8  is 500?

          9                 MR. LANGFELDER: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: As of this

         11  moment?

         12                 MR. LANGFELDER: That's correct. And

         13  we are at 477.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, is it also

         15  correct to say that in the Year 2000 you will not

         16  move to implement that 1,000 that you originally

         17  started with?

         18                 MR. LANGFELDER: As Dr. Marcos

         19  mentioned, the health care environment is uncertain

         20  and influx. Based on our current knowledge, which

         21  unfortunately could change tomorrow, based on our

         22  current knowledge and our current cash flows, we are

         23  anticipating that the 1,000 FTEs that we thought we

         24  would need to begin in Fiscal -- at the beginning of

         25  Fiscal Year 2000, can now be pushed to the second
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          2  half of the Year 2000 for implementation in the Year

          3  2001 and 2002 and 2003. The reason for the change

          4  was in between March and now, we were fortunate to

          5  win an appeal with the State called DRG Creet

          6  (phonetic). We won. We won about $30 million, cash

          7  only, and that allowed us to push the numbers a

          8  little bit.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But if you didn't

         10  have these, what I call them, and I may be wrong,

         11  but just for not finding another word right now,

         12  since I have been here throughout these hearings,

         13  these one-shot deals, that is really money you

         14  spent. However, you have not received it until

         15  recently because you had to go to court to get it.

         16                 So, see, here is where I am having a

         17  little problem. If you look at HHC, it looks like

         18  you are in the black, but in reality, if I was a CPA

         19  and I did whatever the terminology is, you have one

         20  foot which on paper shows that you are doing fine,

         21  but if you look at the left foot, you are really in

         22  a deficit, you are in the red.

         23                 MR. LANGFELDER: That's correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So you will never

         25  catch up or you will never continue to provide the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            14

          1  HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

          2  kinds of services, regardless of what you espouse,

          3  because you always have that potential threat that

          4  if you don't get this instant cash infusion, which

          5  is not real, new money, it is money owed to you for

          6  a previous debt, then when do we really take the

          7  bull by the horns?

          8                 DR. MARCOS: You are right. You are

          9  right that we have a deficit which is relatively

         10  small. We are talking about the potential deficit of

         11  $50 million, in a corporation with a budget of

         12  almost $4 billion. So, I think it is fair to say

         13  that we are in relative good health financially but

         14  we still have that deficit.

         15                 Now, the other thing that Mr.

         16  Langfelder was referring to is the uncertainty.

         17                 For instance, we have been preparing

         18  for managed care, for Medicaid Managed Care. We

         19  don't know when that will happen. One day we are

         20  told maybe July, the next day we are told maybe in

         21  October. That is a major issue for us. So, the

         22  number of uninsured is increasing too. So there are

         23  a lot of things that are playing roles here.

         24                 We try to delay or postpone as much

         25  as we can, actions like layoffs, and resort to those
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          2  situations only when we don't have any other choice.

          3                 So, before we resort to a reduction

          4  in the work force to that route, we look at

          5  attrition, we look at severance, we look at early

          6  retirement, which we hope we will have an early

          7  retirement, perhaps at the end of this year. So,

          8  that is the situation right now.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me ask you

         10  two more things. One, the 500 number, that does not

         11  include the 206 positions in the Brooklyn Central

         12  Laundry; is that correct?

         13                 DR. MARCOS: Correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And the only

         15  reason why we don't hear about it any longer is

         16  because I believe it is in arbitration now?

         17                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So that if you

         19  lose that, that means that these 206 positions

         20  continue to operate and you will continue to operate

         21  the contract that you want to contract out with, I

         22  think the company was Angelica?

         23                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. However, if

         25  you win that, it is an arbitration, and just so I
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          2  understand it, because I don't know the legalities

          3  on all of that stuff, that means that then they

          4  cease to exist, I guess gradually as you explained

          5  it so we will have an additional 206 positions that

          6  would be eliminated because this contracting out

          7  with this company will now take place; is that fair

          8  to say?

          9                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, my last,

         11  and then I will call my colleagues and then I will

         12  come back for more, the child health clinics. It has

         13  been brought to my attention and this Committee,

         14  that allegedly two child health clinics in the South

         15  Bronx have been closed, and the closed clinics are

         16  Forest Houses and John Mitchell Houses. Can you

         17  explain, one, is that true? And two, why were they

         18  closed? And what was the reason for that?

         19                 DR. MARCOS: The staff at the Forest

         20  Houses in the Bronx were temporarily relocated in

         21  late December of 1998 to the Melrose Clinic.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: To the what? I am

         23  sorry.

         24                 DR. MARCOS: Melrose Clinic. Pending

         25  completion of repairs. And the operation will resume
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          2  at the Forest Houses Clinic at the end of May.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: However, let me

          4  make sure I understand this. The Forest Houses you

          5  say that you have temporarily relocated them out of

          6  there while the renovation is taking place?

          7                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Who is doing that

          9  renovation?

         10                 DR. MARCOS: NYCHA.

         11                 That is the New York Housing --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, I understand

         13  that. Do we have a timetable from them about when

         14  they are starting, when will they be finished?

         15                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, we expect to move

         16  back to the Forest Houses May 25th, 1999.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, hopefully

         18  before the end of this month.

         19                 Now, have you gotten a recent status

         20  report that says they are on target? So that once

         21  that is done then the likelihood will be that you

         22  will relocate out of this Melrose and that the

         23  Forest Houses Clinic will be reinstituted?

         24                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And on the John

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

          2  Mitchell, what was the status on that one?

          3                 DR. MARCOS: The staff were given 72

          4  hours to evacuate the clinic?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: To what?

          6                 DR. MARCOS: To leave the clinic, the

          7  Mitchell Houses, when asbestos was found in April.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          9                 DR. MARCOS: There were two physician

         10  teams at this child health clinic. One team was

         11  temporarily relocated to the Belvis Diagnostic and

         12  Treatment Center; and the other team moved to the

         13  Webster Houses Clinic.

         14                 NYCHA has undertaken the necessary

         15  work at Mitchell Houses and we anticipate resuming

         16  operation at that site at the end of June.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Of this year?

         18                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, so that we

         20  --

         21                 DR. MARCOS: June 28th.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So this doesn't

         23  pop up anymore, these are temporarily relocations

         24  because there was an emergency, it had to be done,

         25  but hopefully before the end of this fiscal year
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          2  both locations, you should be relocated back there

          3  and operating, correct?

          4                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir. Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          6                 Council Member Reed and then Quinn

          7  and then Clarke.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair. I will certainly try to be brief.

         10                 I am pleased to see in your

         11  testimony, Mr. President, that you have -- I know it

         12  is in here somewhere -- in trying to get the word

         13  out, you have increased your advertising budget for

         14  HHC; could you tell me -- nine, I think page nine --

         15  anyway, could you tell me what your budget is?

         16                 MR. LANGFELDER: Yes. We have about a

         17  4.6, $4.7 million advertising and marketing budget,

         18  3 million of which is basically controlled by

         19  central office in Metro Plus, and each network

         20  spends about another $225,000 on average per network

         21  on that -- it is for each facility obviously, but it

         22  is in the central budget, as opposed to each

         23  facility budget. In addition, each facility has

         24  their own budget to do multiple type of marketing --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But President
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          2  Marcos oversees the campaign, right? You ultimately

          3  oversee what style we are using to do this?

          4                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: You know, I

          6  think I can't overemphasize, I have told you this

          7  over and over again, you can't walk in the street,

          8  you can't ride a bus, you can't go anywhere without

          9  seeing these hospitals and everybody else -- now

         10  there are billboards downtown, they are more popular

         11  than the movie theaters, telling you to come down

         12  there and use their services. So, I am not sure that

         13  budget is adequate. I think last year you told me it

         14  was essentially the same; have we increased that

         15  budget at all?

         16                 MR. LANGFELDER: It was about two and

         17  a half million last year and it is about 4.7 this

         18  year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And do you

         20  project doing anything else about that?

         21                 DR. MARCOS: I think that, if I

         22  remember correctly, in June you will see the

         23  beginning of a new campaign of advertising of our

         24  hospital.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Frankly, I don't
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          2  see it. I see Lenox Hill, I see everybody else, but

          3  hospitals I never heard of before. I have yet to see

          4  our hospitals advertised.

          5                 DR. MARCOS: Well, you are right, and

          6  we should be spending more money in advertisements,

          7  but at the same time we have to be prudent, and you

          8  know, there is a limited number of dollars that we

          9  have.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: It would be

         11  interesting to find out, and I guess I don't want to

         12  beat this to death, but I mean to the extent that I

         13  can buy this Administration's argument about what

         14  you are trying to do with your funding to the extent

         15  that I can buy your argument, you say you have to be

         16  competitive, you cannot be competitive if you don't

         17  compete. You can't compete if you don't go out there

         18  and tell people about your services.

         19                 So, it would be interesting, I would

         20  think you would be curious to know what percentage

         21  of one of these other major facilities operating

         22  budget is directed towards marketing so that you can

         23  compare what you are doing, because otherwise you

         24  are not in the game, and so we end up doing this and

         25  this and this until the last person shuts the lights
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          2  off.

          3                 So, if we, at least let me leave it

          4  to this Council member, is to buy your argument that

          5  we are going to be competitive, and I must say I

          6  have been extremely impressed with the facilities

          7  that I have had an opportunity to visit.

          8                 Now, some of that has been staged,

          9  and trust me I will be back, that is a neutral word,

         10  is but the enthusiasm and what you have been doing

         11  there, that is really a neutral word, has been

         12  terrific, and I am planning on going back when it is

         13  not quite so orchestrated, that is a better word.

         14  But you can't compete.

         15                 My last question is, I am just trying

         16  to, I don't quite understand this number here, we

         17  are talking utilization, trends, so you are talking

         18  about the average length of stay, in other words, a

         19  person in the hospital now on average is staying .2

         20  less days than they were before or three percent and

         21  discharges drop by two percent, what does that mean?

         22                 DR. MARCOS: It means that on the

         23  average, on the average patients who are

         24  hospitalized in our facilities stay on the average

         25  5. --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I got that part,

          3  I don't understand the discharge has dropped by two.

          4                 DR. MARCOS: We call it discharge,

          5  that is the word, it really doesn't reflect the

          6  reality, when we call it discharges, they are really

          7  hospitalizations or admissions, and the number of --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Discharges sound

          9  like you are getting out, you are talking about

         10  coming in.

         11                 DR. MARCOS: Right. Coming into the

         12  hospital has dropped --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Maybe that is

         14  why we are having a problem here.

         15                 DR. MARCOS: Has dropped two percent,

         16  but the word, the technical word --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Discharges means

         18  people that enter the hospital have decreased by two

         19  percent?

         20                 DR. MARCOS: Exactly.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I don't know

         22  where everybody else in here went to school, but

         23  okay, discharge sounds like getting out, it doesn't

         24  sound like coming in.

         25                 DR. MARCOS: You are right, and I have
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          2  also a problem with that word, but that is the word

          3  that in the industry is used because --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: We are supposed

          5  to be leaders in the industry, President Marcos,

          6  that is what you told me before. That is what you

          7  told me.

          8                 DR. MARCOS: The time of discharge,

          9  apparently the bill is sent to the Medicaid and that

         10  is why hospitals in general talk about discharges.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Lastly -- okay,

         12  the most problematic hospitals that we had last

         13  year, also seem to be the ones with the highest rate

         14  of decrease. Harlem Hospital is off the chart when

         15  it comes to all of these others in the 14.3 now. Is

         16  there a correlation that I should be making here

         17  that you slashed all of those positions at Harlem

         18  Hospital. And I guess the statistic on the back page

         19  that the acute care facilities declined an average

         20  daily census is as follows and, you know, you have

         21  your average of five and then you have Harlem

         22  Hospital at 14.3, and you also laid off two-thirds

         23  of the staff. I know that is an over-exaggeration

         24  overstatement, but is there a correlation here?

         25                 DR. MARCOS: No, there is no cost
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          2  effect.

          3                 In other words, we don't downsize a

          4  hospital and then fewer patients come in, it is the

          5  other way around.

          6                 In other words, once we detect a

          7  decrease in the utilization of a hospital, and we

          8  have empty beds in the hospital, then is when we

          9  downsize the staff.

         10                 So, the issue with Harlem, as with

         11  other hospitals, is that we have fewer people being

         12  hospitalized and those that are hospitalized stay

         13  fewer days, so as a result we have more empty beds.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, in other

         15  words, we are going to be seeing further shrinkage

         16  at Harlem Hospital.

         17                 DR. MARCOS: I don't know, maybe not.

         18  Managed care, that emphasizes keeping healthy

         19  patients in the community, and primary care so

         20  people go to their doctor before they get worse and

         21  they have to be hospitalized. Managed care in

         22  general results in fewer people being hospitalized.

         23  How much would that affect Harlem or other

         24  hospitals, we don't know. But still today Harlem has

         25  close to 250 patients in the house, so it still is a
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          2  hospital that is very active.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

          6  Quinn.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 Earlier when the Department of Health

          9  was here, they were having a discussion asking

         10  questions about the Methadone management, the money

         11  that has been put in for that -- maintenance, I am

         12  sorry, Methadone maintenance. I wanted to get a

         13  sense from the Health and Hospitals Corporation of

         14  how that new allocation and that new program is

         15  going to interact with other existing Methadone

         16  programs and, you know, can you like fall out of the

         17  new program, you know, with funds at some point if

         18  you are not able to stay off Methadone, no longer be

         19  used for you, do you then go back into the other

         20  program, how is all of that going to happen, and how

         21  much HHC funding is allocated for that initiative,

         22  in addition to the DOH funding?

         23                 DR. MARCOS: Out of the six programs

         24  that we have, I think the budget is about $10

         25  million, and now we have got an infusion of $5
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          2  million from the   City to improve the services,

          3  which is very significant.

          4                 But let me ask Dr. Dunne, to address

          5  the programmatic question.

          6                 DR. DUNNE: One of the things that we

          7  are very happy to have the $5 million is that it

          8  allows us to enhance our programs, from the

          9  standpoint of placing an emphasis on vocational

         10  rehab, training, training programs so that the

         11  recipient can go out and find employment, helping

         12  them to go from being on Methadone to abstinence,

         13  providing a lot of support, increasing the number of

         14  caseworkers so that there is more individual one on

         15  one with case managers and vocational rehab

         16  trainers, so that they are better prepared to go

         17  towards abstinence and also to find better

         18  employment outside of their drug programs.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What is the

         20  process by which somebody would opt into the

         21  maintenance program, as opposed to the other

         22  programs?

         23                 DR. DUNNE: It is an individual

         24  decision. When an individual comes into the program,

         25  they are offered all of the different modalities for
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          2  treatment, and we have been emphasizing to new

          3  admissions to Methadone to abstinence program, but

          4  we really make it an individual choice so that the

          5  individual has the decision whether or not they want

          6  to go to abstinence or whether or not they remain on

          7  Methadone maintenance.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Of that $5

          9  million, is any part of it allocated for training of

         10  the HHC workers?

         11                 I guess my concern is that people

         12  will,  not necessarily intentionally, but feel

         13  coerced to, given, you know, all of the press, et

         14  cetera, feel coerced into going into the maintenance

         15  program.

         16                 So, is there a training initiative

         17  that will attempt to increase the skills of the

         18  counselors so that that isn't, and just tell me a

         19  little bit about that?

         20                 DR. DUNNE: That is a very important

         21  component of the program.

         22                 We really want to emphasize that we

         23  want to provide as much support as possible, that

         24  meant training our counselors, training our case

         25  managers, to be able to support the individual in
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          2  whatever method of treatment they selected.

          3                 I am not sure the exact amount of

          4  money that was allocated to that.

          5                 DR. MARCOS: We can get back to you if

          6  you want to know, of the $5 million, how much goes

          7  into training, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That would be

          9  great, I am very interested in the whole Methadone

         10  initiative, and also just the training, I am

         11  particularly interested in for health care workers,

         12  as well. So that would be great.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         15  Clarke.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 Dr. Marcos, good afternoon. Good

         19  evening.

         20                 DR. MARCOS: Good afternoon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: It is more

         22  than afternoon, it is evening.

         23                 On page three of your testimony you

         24  talked a little bit about proposed legislation in

         25  both assembly and senate that would increase the
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          2  amount that HHC received in supplemental, whatever

          3  this pool is. Now, can you tell us to address the

          4  growing uninsured population that received health

          5  care in your hospital, can you tell us more about

          6  this? Where is the legislation going and what is the

          7  projected outcome of that legislation? Is there

          8  anything that you think that the City Council can do

          9  as a partner in making sure that this legislation

         10  becomes reality, especially because I would say that

         11  my district probably has more uninsured than anybody

         12  else, and I want to make sure that there is health

         13  care for these folks.

         14                 Where are you with this?

         15                 DR. MARCOS: Last year, as you know,

         16  we got a lot of support from the assembly and the

         17  senate and we are able, I mean they were able to

         18  pass a bill to increase the amount of money that is

         19  the proportionate share that comes to the

         20  Corporation because of the number of uninsured

         21  patients that we treat.

         22                 The Governor didn't sign that

         23  legislation that would have brought to HHC about

         24  $100 million, so this year we have -- we are working

         25  to reintroduce the same legislation and I understand
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          2  that both the senate and the assembly are willing to

          3  push that, and certainly the support of the City

          4  Council would be helpful.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And why didn't

          6  you reach out to the chair as a former assembly

          7  member, each of us sitting here know at least one

          8  state senator and one assembly person, so if you are

          9  serious about this, why haven't you reached out to

         10  us, knowing that as elected officials we must have

         11  relationships with other elected officials, if this

         12  is as important as it seems on paper? Can you send

         13  to our chair a copy of that legislation --

         14                 DR. MARCOS: Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So we can see

         16  who the sponsors are so we recognize that there are

         17  additional sponsors that we need to talk to them.

         18                 DR. MARCOS: We will.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I mean this is

         20  important.

         21                 Beyond that, also on page six I am

         22  concerned about you want --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: In fairness, and

         24  I always like to be fair, I believe that information

         25  was given to us as we toured the different
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          2  facilities, particularly most recently when we went

          3  to -- I know it is Elmhurst in Queens, that was in

          4  the packet.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I want to

          7  make sure I understand this, is this the one where

          8  the Governor, and in March it was supposed to end?

          9  This was one of them also, correct?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Can you

         11  explain it to us?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I know that

         13  Council Member Steve DiBrienza and myself had a

         14  press conference on the steps of City Hall urging

         15  the legislature not to allow the Governor to move

         16  forward, because if I understand the issue, this is

         17  debt owed to you that you were supposed to be

         18  reimbursed and you every so often got this band-aid

         19  approach, and if the legislature does nothing, and

         20  what the Governor was asking for was to reinstitute

         21  that and not let it die after March, I believe March

         22  31st, I think that is one of the issues, yes?

         23                 MS. BROWN: If I may, there are two

         24  issues, but you are absolutely on target, and as a

         25  chair you were given that information. There are two
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          2  points.

          3                 The first point, which goes to the

          4  March question, is the Governor in his proposed

          5  budget had proposed to continue reductions in

          6  Medicaid that would essentially sunset, as would

          7  have sunsetted as of March, but in the Fiscal Year

          8  2000, 1999/2000 state budget, the Governor was

          9  proposing to continue those cuts.

         10                 There are significant implications

         11  for HHC if those cuts were to be continued, and that

         12  is in fact the issue where you and your colleagues

         13  had the press conference and you had sent

         14  information out with regards to not just HHC but all

         15  hospitals.

         16                 The second issue is the

         17  disproportionate share legislation or the IGT

         18  legislation. The Governor in his proposed budget

         19  also was proposing to continue legislation that

         20  allowed for the state to use federal dollars,

         21  disproportionate share, to access disproportionate

         22  share dollars and to use those in the general

         23  budget.

         24                 Those are dollars that we and other

         25  public hospitals will contend are due to the
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          2  hospitals that render the services to the uninsured,

          3  and that is where our disproportionate share

          4  legislation comes out. We provided a briefing to the

          5  chair of this Committee, and also in the packages to

          6  all of the Council people in their various tours to

          7  our networks, because we have had a page for each of

          8  the networks in terms of the implications of how

          9  much uninsured care each network provides, how much

         10  we get in terms of bad debt, charity pools, DISH

         11  (phonetic), and how much remains, which would just

         12  substantiate why we want an increase in our

         13  disproportionate share funds.

         14                 Right now there is an assembly and

         15  the assembly is sponsoring the new DISH legislation,

         16  Gottfried and a myriad of members of the Assembly,

         17  and the Senate in the form of Campanion, so there

         18  are two bills out there.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Let me

         20  apologize then for my tardiness and just say to the

         21  chair I would like for us to do some affirmative

         22  action on it, the fact that we got the information

         23  as a Committee and as a Council to see how we can

         24  assist in the passage of the legislation, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 Also, on page six you delineate a

          3  number of issues that confront you in terms of

          4  remaining solvent or to continue your efforts in

          5  these areas.

          6                 Can you give us what the implication

          7  is for the municipal hospitals themselves, and if

          8  you talk about consolidation and reconfiguration and

          9  health care services, many hospitals have been

         10  reconfigured almost to death right now, and if you

         11  reconfigure many more, we may as well close the

         12  doors. So, can you tell us which hospitals you think

         13  can take some more reconfiguration in terms of

         14  health care services? What kind of attrition?

         15                 You see, when you say management

         16  initiative, there is always implication for line

         17  workers, who although you will tell us that the

         18  attrition will come at management levels or

         19  whatever, if there is no supervision by management,

         20  then line workers, whether they are unionized or

         21  not, productivity dies, so can you tell us how you

         22  intend to do this, including what hospital

         23  affiliation contracts you think you will do some

         24  savings from and what performance-based model of

         25  standards are like, so that we have a real sense of
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          2  what these things delineate, what does that mean for

          3  us in terms of what services are going to be left in

          4  our hospitals?

          5                 DR. MARCOS: We don't have right now

          6  any major plan to, certainly to close any facility

          7  or to eliminate any service. When we talk about

          8  management initiatives, for instance, is the plan

          9  that we have to purchase the central laundry, for

         10  instance, outside of the Corporation, that is part

         11  of the management initiative. We are also looking at

         12  consolidating some of the labs so that some of the

         13  tests can be done centrally at some -- by network,

         14  rather than having every hospital have different

         15  lots and different -- other than that, at this time

         16  we don't have any major plan to do anything, other

         17  than adapt to the demands of managed care that

         18  happens, and in terms of the affiliations, we will

         19  continue to work with our affiliates.  In the case

         20  of Kings County, which I know is very important to

         21  you, Councilwoman. We are right now in the process

         22  of negotiating a contract with the State University

         23  of New York and the Kings County physicians that has

         24  not been finalized.

         25                 In terms of maximization of bad debt
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          2  and charity care pools, that is what we were talking

          3  about before in terms of getting legislation to

          4  increase the payment for the uninsured, and as far

          5  as early retirement, we would like the state to

          6  approve an early retirement plan so that by the end

          7  of this year we can offer that to the workers. Those

          8  are the only plans that we have at this time.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, you

         10  touched on the Central Laundry, and you know that is

         11  sitting in the middle of the 40th District, and I

         12  would just like to ask where and what is the status

         13  of that laundry right now. If all of what has been

         14  said about Angelica, who is your choice as a

         15  contractor, is true, would you still intend, with

         16  all of the reputation that this organization has

         17  based on everything reported to us, would you in

         18  good conscience give them your good contract, even

         19  if they were your lowest bidder now?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before you answer

         21  that. I want to be sure, because I have raised that

         22  issue and I want to be clear, in case you were out

         23  of the room.

         24                 It is my understanding that it

         25  currently is in arbitration. It is either you live
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          2  or you die. It is no longer legally whether this and

          3  that, and I want to be clear. And so far because of

          4  that, there has been no action taken, although

          5  waiting for the outcome. And I think I asked the

          6  question that if you lose, then that means that the

          7  central Laundry Continues to operate as an HHC

          8  facility.

          9                 If you lose, I asked the question,

         10  does the mean 206 positions then get lost, and then

         11  you will move forward with the potential contract,

         12  and I think you told me yes.

         13                 Having said that, then the question

         14  is, I don't know about good conscience or what have

         15  you, but if you win the arbitration then answer the

         16  question, do you still intend to move forward with

         17  the Angelica contract?

         18                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, we do.

         19                 But let me ask Mr. Cirillo to address

         20  the issue of this negative information about

         21  Angelica because we have investigated this.

         22                 MR. CIRILLO: Yes, we have

         23  investigated Angelica. We have looked at the two, we

         24  have inspected the two plants that would be running

         25  the laundry service for us, one is in Edison, New
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          2  Jersey and one is in Ballston Spa, New York, which

          3  is --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Where is the

          5  other one?

          6                 MR. CIRILLO: Ballston Spa, which is

          7  close to Albany, New York, and it would be about

          8  half of the volume going to Edison and half of the

          9  volume going to Ballston Spa. We found that Angelica

         10  has passed VENDEX, we have checked 16 references

         11  from both the Ballston Spa facility and the Edison

         12  facility, with no negative outcomes. We don't find

         13  any OSHA violations, we don't find any PESH

         14  (phonetic) violations, we find the company is

         15  financially sound and has a reasonable listing. The

         16  Dunn and Bradstreet shows it as stable. It has been

         17  in business for 25 years and we don't see the

         18  negative data that is being reported by the union.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Let me just

         20  ask a real tough question, and you can take it

         21  whichever way you want. We have given incentives to

         22  just about everybody in the private industry that

         23  was about to leave the City of New York if they had

         24  ten jobs or more.

         25                 I am talking about the 40th District
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          2  and its stability, a community where people cannot

          3  go on welfare because of their status. When you take

          4  away 206 jobs in my community, where people can't

          5  take welfare, what do you intend will happen in

          6  there? Crime rate goes up. Do you feel that it is

          7  important for you to invest in communities such as

          8  if you invest everywhere else in the City and you

          9  pay other corporate people to stay in the City. I

         10  don't know that this is too much of an investment.

         11  Including the fact that they proposed that if you

         12  upgrade and if you upgrade this facility, that we

         13  could create a revenue stream, the same way you

         14  collect fees and whatever else, for violations in

         15  the Health Department, why couldn't we in this

         16  facility take in laundry from our institutions

         17  within the radius of where this laundry is to create

         18  a revenue stream that would bring you up to

         19  Angelica's price, whatever it is, or even if it is

         20  not Angelica's price, why couldn't the City put in

         21  its own tax levy dollar to stabilize the community

         22  and the jobs? Have you thought of creating something

         23  that would create a revenue stream that would

         24  underwrite, on the other hand, the Angelica issue?

         25                 DR. MARCOS: I understand your
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          2  concern, Councilwoman.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: It is not

          4  concern, my outrage.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Please.

          6                 DR. MARCOS: Your outrage. I

          7  understand it. As a private citizen I am concerned

          8  also about jobs for people, and I know how difficult

          9  it is when people lose their jobs, but as President

         10  of this Corporation, my only, our only concern is

         11  health care, and we have to use every penny we have

         12  to provide good health care and this arrangement

         13  will allow us to have over $6 million that we can

         14  reinvest in health care and that is why we are doing

         15  this.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You know, Mr.

         17  President, you know, it sounds good and it is always

         18  nice when it is somebody else's job, when it is not

         19  my job or your job, all of these families out there

         20  have children in school, they are paying a mortgage,

         21  they are paying rent, they pay taxes in the City of

         22  New York, and when you take the money from the City

         23  of New York to Edison, New Jersey, I think we are

         24  fighting New Jersey right now for Port Authority,

         25  jobs that they take from the City of New York, how
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          2  come you are willing to give away our legacy to New

          3  Jersey so easily, to give the jobs to Angelica, when

          4  otherwise if it was a Port Authority job we would be

          5  fighting the Governor of the State of New York, for

          6  New Jersey, for taking away our resources from our

          7  City. Why are you so willing to give away our

          8  resources to New Jersey, while their people get

          9  employed and our people come unemployed, and in fact

         10  in the 40th District?

         11                 I think this is a real outrage and I

         12  think you haven't seen the worst side of me yet.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, having said

         14  that, do you have any --

         15                 Before I call Council Member Quinn,

         16  let me go into an area that I think is important and

         17  I need to hear from you.

         18                 If you recall, Mr. President, one of

         19  the things I raised the last time you were before us

         20  was the rumors I have heard more than once reports

         21  about a decline in the number of ambulance runs to

         22  public health hospitals since the transfer of the

         23  EMS from you to -- from HHC to the Fire Department.

         24                 One, what is the exact reduction in

         25  the number of ambulance runs to each of the public
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          2  hospitals over the last month or over the last six

          3  months? And particularly because I am trying to get

          4  a handle, and second, you testified during the

          5  Preliminary Budget hearing that you see this as a

          6  problem, has the Corporation had a discussion with

          7  the Fire Department on this issue?

          8                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, we have had

          9  discussions with the Fire Department and we work

         10  very closely with the Fire Department, actually the

         11  Commissioner Von Essen has been extremely helpful.

         12  We will provide, I don't have the numbers with me by

         13  hospital, but I can tell you that in Fiscal Year '90

         14  there were 231,000 runs, meaning ambulances to HHC

         15  from EMS, and in Fiscal Year '98, eight years later,

         16  we had 247,000. That is an increase of seven

         17  percent.

         18                 Now, each hospital is not the same,

         19  this is the overall number, but we will provide you

         20  with the --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, one of the

         22  things I want to do, not only once we pass this

         23  budget is, if you recall, I recall that when you

         24  were the overseer of EMS, every month each facility

         25  hospital by hospital will know exactly how many runs
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          2  came through their hospitals, and you monitored

          3  that.

          4                 Now, apparently while you are getting

          5  some kind of information, the information you are

          6  getting is really not informing you, detailing you,

          7  so that you can evaluate whether you are still at

          8  that same level; is that fair to say, sir?

          9                 DR. MARCOS: We get information from

         10  EMS.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, you do. But

         12  the information, as I understand it, that you do

         13  get, can you actually see whether those 11 acute

         14  care facilities are still receiving the volume of

         15  runs as they were when you were the overseer?

         16                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, we have those

         17  numbers.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And those numbers

         19  indicate what?

         20                 DR. MARCOS: As I said, their overall

         21  number is up by seven percent since 1990, but it

         22  varies by hospital, and that is information I will

         23  provide to you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Because my

         25  concern is with this whole new care system,
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          2  particularly when it comes to reimbursement, I just

          3  don't want to see, since now everybody wants to

          4  participate because it is a vested interest, that

          5  the public health system, which was the primary

          6  facility, becomes victim to the voluntary sector.

          7                 I don't think as a corporation and we

          8  as a government can afford that luxury and I want to

          9  let you know that, okay?

         10                 Council Member Quinn.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. Just

         12  a quick question.

         13                 Do HHC outpatient clinics provide the

         14  morning after pill? And also, are you using this new

         15  better PAP smear test that is out there, I am sorry

         16  I don't know the name of it? And if the answer is

         17  no, is that because there isn't enough money in the

         18  budget for either? And if the answer is no because

         19  there isn't enough money, is that something that you

         20  would be interested in getting money for in the

         21  budget? Both or either?

         22                 DR. MARCOS: We do provide the pill

         23  and we are working to see if we can install the new

         24  computerized way of analyzing PAP smear.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You do provide
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          2  the morning after pill?

          3                 DR. MARCOS: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me go into

          7  just two more areas and then -- you did respond to

          8  the letter that the Speaker and myself and Council

          9  Member Eisland wrote to you about the article on

         10  North Central Bronx Hospital. Has there been any

         11  change since the communications that we received to

         12  the present?

         13                 DR. MARCOS: Yes, sir.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, sir, meaning

         15  what? There has been a change?

         16                 DR. MARCOS: No, that we --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: There has not

         18  been a change?

         19                 DR. MARCOS: No, no --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, okay, all

         21  right.

         22                 And let me just go into the family

         23  health services, because I see that in HHC there is

         24  a lump sum of funding for family health services and

         25  for prison contracts into a single budget code.
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          2                 The funding for this code totals $109

          3  million this year, and $113.9 million for the next

          4  year. How much of this year's allocation of the $901

          5  million in budget code 1109 is for family health

          6  services, and how much do you plan to spend by the

          7  end of this fiscal year? And how much is budgeted

          8  for prison health contracts in the budget code, and

          9  how much do you plan on spending?

         10                 MR. LANGFELDER: The money we get for

         11  the family health service clinics is $24 million

         12  from DOH, and that is supplemented by a budgeted $15

         13  million in revenue, for a total expense of $39

         14  million. Unfortunately our revenues are behind

         15  target by about $5 million as we speak.

         16                 We continue to work with the

         17  facilities and our systems to improve that

         18  collection effort, so right now I would tell you we

         19  have a $5 million hole there that we are trying to

         20  correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And for the

         22  Fiscal Year 2000 allocation in that same budget

         23  code, which I see is about $113.9 million, is that

         24  similar, the same?

         25                 MR. LANGFELDER: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And also with

          3  prison services?

          4                 MR. LANGFELDER: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, let me just

          6  say this, because it has been a long day and these

          7  are issues that we can always communicate between

          8  now and the adoption of the budget: President

          9  Marcos, is there anything that you would, or anybody

         10  else, and if not, do you have any closing remarks

         11  that you would like to share with us?

         12                 DR. MARCOS: No, sir.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         14                 Well, seeing no more business before

         15  us, I thank you for being patient and staying with

         16  us beyond the time that you said you could stay.

         17                 DR. MARCOS: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         19                 Seeing no other business before this

         20  Committee, I adjourn these hearings.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 7:30 p.m.)

         22
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